


6101 - 6108, to obtain temporary, preliminary, and permanent injunctive relief, 

rescission or reformation of contracts, restitution, disgorgement of ill-gotten monies, 

and other equitable relief for Defendants' acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) 

of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), and in violation ofthe FTC's Telemarketing Sales 

Rule{"TSR"), 16 C.F.R.Part 310. 

Jl.JRISDICTION AND VENUE 

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), 

and 1345, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a), 53(b), 57b,6102(c), and 6105(b). 

3. VenueisproperinthisDistrictunder28U.S.C.§ 1391(b) and (c), and ISU.S.C. § 

53(b). 

PLAINTIFF 

4. PlaintiffFTC is an independent agcncyof'the.United.States Govemmentcreatedby 

statute. 15 U.S.C. §§ 41 - 58. The FTC is charged, inter alia, with enforcement of 

Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), which prohibits unfair and deceptive 

acts or practices in or affecting commerce. The FTC is also charged with 

enforcement ofllie Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C.,-§§ 6101- 6108~E..urs..u.ant.t<Lth.u>e",- _ 

Telemarketing Act, the FTC promulgated and enforces the TSR, 16 C.F.R. Part 310, 

which prohibits deceptive and abusive telemarketing acts or practices. The FTC is 

authorized to initiate federal district court proceedings, by its own attorneys, to enjoin 

violations of the FTC Act and the TSR, and to secure such equitable relief as may be 
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COMMON ENTERPRISE
 

8.	 Defendants 



the telephone, in or affecting commerce, as "commerce" is defined in Section 4 of the 

FTC Act, 15 U.S.C.§ 44. 

12.	 Since at least 2005, and continuing thereafter, Defendants have telemarketed and sold 

purported general-purpose credit cards for an advance fee to consumers in the United 

States. 

13.	 Defendants' telemarketing typically is directed .. atconsumers who have poor credit 

histories. In most instances, Defendants have placed unsolicited outbound telephone 

calls to consumers to offer them a purportedlyguaranteed or pre-approved general­

purpose credit. card, such as.a MasterCard withcreditlimits rangingfrom $2,500 to 

$7,500 and up to $1,000 cash advance ability. In some instances, IFE solicits 

consumers using flyers or letters, to which consumers have responded by cal1ingthe 

telephon.e.nlJIl11Jer thl:l,t JFEpl."Qvides, 

14.	 Defendants' telemarketers tell consumers that they are offering general-purpose 

credit cards that may be used anywhere, such as at gas stations or supermarkets. 

15.	 Defendants often promise consumers that they will receive vouchers equal to the 

amount of the advance fee, which they-can apply to future balances on their cards. 

16.	 During the initial telephone calls with consumers, Defendants request bank account 

information, 



17.	 Following the initial sales pitch, Defendants begin the 



consumers, and ask that the consumer send a cancelled check with the signed 

agreement to facilitate debit processing. 

20.	 Shortly after the verification process, Defendants debit the consumer's bank account 

for an advance fee ranging from $200 to $300. Defendants either debit the 

consumer's .account for the entire amount,or..debitthe consumer's account on two 

different dates, each time for half of the advance fee. 

21.	 During the initial sales pitch, Defendants tell some consumers that they may cancel or 

change the sale within 4 Tc 3.Tm�(4 [680le 504.0474.1231 519.6 Tm�(8phourTc 13.1678 0 0 4.;24.3631 572.16 9 50hin )Tj�11.4 0 0 11.4 281.9666 547.6 28m�(hin )Tj(entire )6Tj�0.0. Tc -31.64 0 Td�6 2at )Tj�0 a206 Tm�(8p423  Tc 1.55  0 Td�16 1ount )Tjo0241 Tc 2.59 88 Td�(th79umers)Tj�0 Tc 4..936 0 Td�(.7e )Tj�0.05  Tc 11.4360 0 11442 978 21.	 
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27.	 Many consumers have complained to Defendants that their solicitation and 

representations are deceptive and misleading, and for those reasons, 



32.	 Therefore, Defendants' representation as'set forth in Paragraph 30 is false and 

misleading and constitutes a deceptive actor practice in violation ofSection 5(a) of 

the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). 

Count IT - Misrepres.enting Terms ofCancellation Policy 

33. In numerous instances, in connection with the marketing cf-advance-fee credit cards, 

Defendants represent, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, that: 

A.	 Defendants provide a cancellation period during which time the consumers 

can cancel or change the sale, and avoid the debiting oftheir bank accounts; 

and 

B.	 Defendants will honor consumers' requests to cancel their participation in 

Defendants' advance-fee credit card.offer, 

34.	 In truth and in fact, innumerous instances inwhich Defendants have rnade.the 

representations above: 

A. Defendants do not provide a cancellation period during which time the 

consumers can cancel or change the sale, and avoid the debiting of their bank 

__________----""'accounts;-"an"""""d~ _ 

B.	 Defendants do not honor consumers' requests to cancel their participation in 

Defendants' advance-fee credit card offer. 

35.	 Therefore, Defendants' representations as set forth in Paragraph 33 are false and 

misleading and constitute deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of 

the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). 
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VIOLATIONS OF THE TELEMARKETING SALES RULE 

. .	 . 

36. Congress directed the FTC to prescribe rules prohibiting abusive and deceptive 

telemarketing acts orpractices pursuantto the Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. 

§§ 6101 -6108, in 1994. On August 16, 1995, the FTC adopted the Telemarketing 

Sales Rule (the "Origin~ TSR"),16C.F.R~Part 310, which became effeqtiveon 

December 31, 1995. On January 29, 2003, the FTC amended theOriginalTSR by 

issuing a-Statement ofBasis.and Purpose and.the final amended Telemarketing Sales 

Rule (the "TSR"). 68 Fed. Reg. 4580,4669. 

37.	 Defendants are "sellers" or "telemarketers"en.gaged in ''telemarketing,''as defined by 

the TSR, 16 C.P.R. § 310.2(z),(bb), and(cc). 

38.	 The TSRprohibits sellersandtelemarketers from misrepresenting, directly or by 

implication, in the sale of goods or services, any ofthe following material 
..	 - , .. 

information: 

A.	 Any material aspect of the performance, efficacy, nature, or central 

characteristics of goods or services that are the subject of a sales offer. 

16 C.F.R. 

§ 310.3(a)(2)(iii); 

B.	 Any material aspect of the nature or terms ofthe seller's refund, cancellation, 

exchange, or repurchase policies. 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(2)(iv). 

39.	 It is an abusive telemarketing act or practice and a violation ofthe TSR for any seller 

or telemarketer to request or receive payment of any fee or consideration in 





A.	 consumers will have a designated period of time in which to review and to 

cancel or change the 



THIS COURT'S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF
 

48.	 Section 13(b) ofthe FTC Act, 15 U.S.c. § 53(b), empowers this Court to grant 

injunctive and 



B.	 Enter a permanent injunction to prevent future violations of the FTC Act and 

the TSR by Defendants; 

C.	 Award such relief as the Court :finds necessary to redress injury to consumers 

resulting from Defendants' violations of the FTC Act and the TSR, including 

but-not limited to, rescission or reformation of contracts, restitution, the 

refund ofmonies paid, and the disgorgement of ill-gotten monies; and 

D.	 Award Plaintiffthe costs ofbringing this


